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Vision
Deliver cost effective, competitive and
reliable power to provide a secure energy
future today and for generations to come.

Mission
Provide excellent service to our distribution
Members by creating opportunities,
cultivating cooperation and navigating
industry risks.

Values
INTEGRITY Do the right thing for the
right reason.

COOPERATION/SERVICE
Collective service that is greater than
individual efforts.

RESPECT
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The Golden Rule.

Financial Highlights
2012

2011

CONDENSED FINANCIAL DATA
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
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Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Operating Margins before Fixed Charges
Fixed Charges before AFUDC
AFUDC on Borrowed Funds
Nonoperating Margins
Net Margins
Total Assets
Long-Term Debt
Patronage Capital and Contributed Capital

383,347,586
320,342,401
63,005,185
23,416,212
400,242
711,241
40,700,456
939,409,017
498,867,983
342,183,934

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

456,970,556
394,710,833
62,259,723
22,071,771
4,651,270
2,198,029
47,037,251
883,817,242
497,245,477
301,483,478

FINANCIAL RATIOS
36.43
184
2.41
5.99
38.82
1.87

Total Equity/Total Assets (%)
Days Cash on Hand
Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Debt/Funds Available for Debt Service
Total Equity/Total Capitalization (%)
Net Plant/Net Debt

34.11
127
2.54
5.79
37.03
1.51

OPERATING STATISTICS
$
$

Average Sales Price/MWh – Members
Average Sales Price/MWh – Nonmembers

51.81
29.54

$
$

60.12
41.40

Energy Sales to Members (MWh)
Energy Sales to Nonmembers (MWh)
Total Energy Sales (MWh)
Member Peak Demand (MW)

6,782,400
263,448
7,045,848
1,541

7,013,300
1,004,896
8,018,196
1,460

Member System Load Factor (%)
Energy Generated (MWh)
Energy Purchased (MWh)

50.11
3,239,621
3,991,904

54.83
1,706,608
6,485,254

SALES TO MEMBERS

OPERATING REVENUES

(in Millions of Dollars)
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The decline in operating revenues is largely due to lower fuel cost.
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Other than fluctuations caused by weather conditions,
Member sales have shown steady growth.
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FOCUS
ON 2020

The Vision of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. (Golden Spread) is to deliver cost effective,
competitive and reliable power to its Members, so its Members can provide their communities with
a secure energy future today and for generations to come. This Vision requires us to constantly
evaluate the many issues affecting power supply and to work consistently toward our defined goal.
We know this Vision will require clear focus throughout the next eight years. The period of time
ending in 2020 will bring more than $1 billion of investment in new resources, significant changes
in the markets within which Golden Spread operates, and significant growth in our internal staff
and processes. Golden Spread enters this period as a growing utility. Golden Spread will emerge
from this period as a maturing utility with a fully developed staff and a significant generation fleet.
The focus needed for the goals of 2020 come from our Vision and our dedication to our Members
and the communities they serve. They inspire us to keep our attention on what matters most: their
energy future.
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FOCUS On 2020

Commercial operations
and transmission

Golden Spread staff embraces new technologies as it manages a
diverse generation fleet and serves a vast geographic area.
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Letter from the President
and Chairman
The theme of this year’s annual report is “Focus

future fuel costs and environmental compliance

on 2020.” We sharpen our focus on the next eight

risks. We have sold the renewable energy credits

years because they are critical to providing long-

(RECs), the environmental attributes associated with

term solutions to meet the energy needs of Golden

this purchase, and the RECs from Golden Spread

Spread’s Members. These pivotal years will set the

Panhandle Wind Ranch (GSPWR) to third parties who

stage for providing cost-effective and reliable energy

use them to comply with their renewable portfolio

to the Members and their Member-Consumers, now

standard obligations. These REC sales help lower

and for many years to come. They are critical to

power costs for our Members.

Golden Spread in fulfilling its Mission and Vision.
Another high priority in 2012 was the assessment
In the next eight years, we will invest more than

of the Cooperative’s organizational structure to

$1 billion to build new power plants to meet growing

determine the best way to develop its staff. As a

loads and to replace expiring power contracts. To

result of this assessment, existing departments

accommodate this aggressive construction schedule

were realigned and 20 new positions were

and the associated operational requirements, we will

identified. The production department was divided

continue to grow the staff of the organization. At the

into production and engineering to address both

same time, we are challenged to actively manage

our construction needs and the growing needs of

the risks associated with ever-evolving electric

our generation fleet. A Member services position

and fuel markets and to take full advantage of the

was added, along with a chief information officer

opportunities those markets present to meet the

and an internal director of human resources.

growing needs of our 16 Member cooperatives and

The legal department was expanded to include

their Member-Consumers.

legal, compliance and risk management. Other
departments added key positions to expand services

The focus needed to meet the 2020 challenge

to Members, to meet additional needs resulting from

continued in 2012. We initiated construction of

growth, and to transition certain services that have

163 megawatts (MW) of new generation at Mustang

been provided by outside consultants. At the end of

Station and negotiated the purchase of more than

2012, there were 46 employees at Golden Spread.

570 MW of new combustion turbine generators from

When the remaining new positions are filled, there

General Electric. Golden Spread will install these

will be 65 employees.

three units in 2015 and 2016. Golden Spread added
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to its portfolio by beginning to take wind-generated

Our 2020 focus also requires that we improve

power in 2012 under a long-term purchased power

the effectiveness and efficiency of our internal

agreement. The added generation helps manage

processes wherever possible. Two important

MARK SCHWIRTZ, PRESIDENT, AND STAN MCCLENDON, CHAIRMAN

accomplishments in 2012 were the successful

that is needed in the next eight years, it is Golden

implementation of new Member billing software to

Spread’s Mission and Vision that provide the

simplify the billing process and increase reporting

compass needed for these activities.

capabilities, and the initial development of the new
information technology infrastructure improvements.

We know that our success, both today and in 2020,

These technology improvements are the first of

will be measured by whether we achieve our primary

many needed to serve the exponential growth

goal of delivering cost effective, competitive and

in data and information requirements of Golden

reliable power to provide a secure energy future for

Spread. Getting the best and latest information in

our Members today and for generations. To achieve

the hands of our employees is vital to ensure that

that goal, we must continue to create opportunities,

we remain focused and keep up with the evolving

cultivate cooperation and navigate industry risk. We

complexity of our industry.

look forward to the challenge.

These are exciting times for Golden Spread. We are
keenly focused on maximizing opportunities as we
navigate our rapid growth in changing times and
evolving markets.
In all this, we know that it is imperative to never
forget who we serve: our Members. As the Golden
Spread Board of Directors and staff focus on all

5

FOCUS ON 2020

Human Resources

The human resources team develops and delivers programs,
processes and plans that unleash the possibilities of our
employees, clearing the way for them to focus on their
purpose to provide excellent service to our Members.
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2012: YEAR IN REVIEW
Staﬀ growth
Recruiting was a major focus in 2012 as Golden Spread began to implement the staffing plan
approved by its Board of Directors in July 2012. Eleven new employees joined Golden Spread
in 2012, and 19 more positions are in the recruitment process. Recruitment will remain a
focus for the organization in 2013.
A hiring initiative of this magnitude changes the face of an organization and requires focus
on core values to maintain alignment. It is imperative that Golden Spread staff each position
with high quality, professional and experienced personnel who understand the importance of
serving the Members that own Golden Spread. The right people improve the organization while
strengthening the Mission and Vision that guide decisions made on behalf of Golden Spread’s
Members.

Organizational Alignment
Hiring the right people is only half the job. A training and development plan that ties directly
into Golden Spread’s goals and objectives continually increases organizational capability. This
process identifies the specific competencies and skills each employee needs to successfully
execute his or her performance plan. Managers work with the human resources department to
perform a training gap analysis, and the plan is modified to ensure the needed competencies
and skills are acquired and maintained.
These steps unite mission, vision, strategy, goals, leadership, teams and individuals to ensure
the organization is aligned from the staff level to the Board of Directors and ultimately to the
Members we serve.
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US On 2020
gSeC team Members
EXECUTIVE: Mark W. Schwirtz, Rita Cain • COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS AND TRANSMISSION: Michael L. Wise, Jennifer Altmiller, Brent Glines (not pictured),
Steven Harrington, Kari Hollandsworth, Lloyd Kolb, Ty McKinney, Matt Moore, Joe Dan Wilson • ENGINEERING AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT: Stephen D. Cross, PE,
Dick Baker, Derek Dowden, Debbie Foster, Chris Hanna, Doug Johnson, Chris Koenig, Shane McMinn, PE, Anthony Perez, Robert Poling, PE, Mark Reinart,
Stacy Sanning, PE, Bret Yeary, PE • FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING: Jacqueline Humphrey, CPA, Tyler Becker, CPA, Gail Eichelmann, Chesna Foster, Melody Gillis, CPA,
Scott Gross, CPA (not pictured), Larry Shields, Roxann Stewart, Steve Wiegand, CPA • PRODUCTION: George E. Hess (not pictured), Kevin Chafﬁn, Robert Fischer,
Wallace Lester, Jeff Pippin, Ron Popejoy • INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY: Francine Brons, Rick Carroll, Christine Vara (not pictured), Cody Webb
LEGAL, RISK AND COMPLIANCE: Mary Hekman, Esq., Darcy Blossfeld, Bill Harrelson, Chris Lang, Marc Rivera, Ruth Valle, Cassie Williams
MEMBER SERVICES AND RATES: John Eichelmann (not pictured), D’Ann Allen • HUMAN RESOURCES: Michelle Fishback
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2012: YEAR IN REVIEW
Wholesale Energy
Markets

of using its own generating resources to serve its

Golden Spread serves Member loads located in two

that market rules permit Golden Spread the flexibility

different wholesale energy markets, the Southwest

to maximize efficient and reliable operations in both

Power Pool (SPP) and the Electric Reliability Council

markets. Finally, Golden Spread worked to address

of Texas (ERCOT). Golden Spread continues to play

problems our Members confront in obtaining sufficient

a major role in the activities of the SPP and has

transmission capacity and new or expanded delivery

participated in proceedings before the Federal Energy

points from ERCOT transmission service providers

Regulatory Commission to help shape market rules

necessary to serve the explosive load growth in

governing the SPP’s new integrated marketplace,

certain Member service areas due in part to increased

scheduled to begin in March 2014.

oil and gas exploration, production and transportation.

Investment in new transmission in the SPP to

Regulatory and Legal
Compliance

remove constraints has dramatically increased
and transmission cost allocation remains a hotly
contested issue. Golden Spread continues to actively

Members’ ERCOT loads and to participate in the
ERCOT market, Golden Spread began working closely
with ERCOT in coordination with the SPP to ensure

support rational and fair transmission pricing and

Golden Spread moved forward in 2012 to continue the

market design policies.

process of formalizing its risk management, regulatory
and legal compliance procedures. Risk management

Golden Spread significantly increased participation

and compliance were integral parts of Golden

in ERCOT activities in 2012, focusing primarily in

Spread’s planning and procedures from its inception,

three areas. First, responding to our Members’

and its growth into a larger utility requires that these

concerns about the lack of adequate generating

procedures become more formalized. Golden Spread

capacity to reliably serve demand in the ERCOT

deeply values the strategic risk management, a

region, Golden Spread urged the Public Utility

hallmark of its innovative development, and is working

Commission of Texas (PUCT) to consider changes to

to implement procedures that will maintain the vitality

the ERCOT market design and promote investment

of this process as it grows.

in additional generation. Second, in anticipation
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FOCUS On 2020
legal, risk and Compliance

The trusted advisors in Golden Spread’s legal, risk and
compliance department address and anticipate a wide
range of issues to help achieve the objectives of Golden
Spread and its Members.
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2012: YEAR IN REVIEW
Resource Planning

prices, higher market prices and any future renewable

New Resource Requirements

Golden Spread’s resource mix is changing quickly as

Golden Spread will need to build or purchase
approximately 800 megawatts (MW) of new generation
capacity by 2020 to serve its Members in the

requirements and/or future carbon taxes.
additional resources are added. By the end of 2012,
Golden Spread’s power supply (nameplate capacity –
MW) consisted of:

Southwest Power Pool (SPP). Most of this capacity
(562 MW) is needed to replace a Southwestern Public
Service Company contract that begins to decline in
2015 and ends in May 2019. The remainder of our
capacity requirement is due to Member load growth.
In the area served by the Electric Reliability Council of
Texas (ERCOT), Golden Spread will need 380 MW of
capacity resources by May 2016 to replace an expiring
full requirements power contract with AEP Energy

25%
COMBINED - CYCLE
NATURAL GAS
(Mustang Station)

25%
QUICK-START AND
SIMPLE-CYCLE
NATURAL GAS

10%
WIND*
(self-owned
and PPA)

40%
PURCHASED
POWER
from SPS and AEP

Partners. Also, some of our Members within ERCOT
are experiencing exceptional load growth due to oil
and gas exploration and production. It is possible
Golden Spread will need additional resources in that
market area by 2020.
Current Resource Operations
Golden Spread completed its first full calendar year of
operating the Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch
(GSPWR) in 2012. This 78.2 MW wind ranch produced
326,584 MWh, which exceeded our projected
generation from this project. GSPWR achieved an
industry-leading capacity factor of 48.5 percent. All
this energy was eligible to receive Renewable Energy
Credits (RECs) which were sold, with all renewable
attributes, in the open market to help further reduce
the energy cost for our Members.
An additional wind resource, Minco III, located in
central Oklahoma, reached commercial operations
on December 19, 2012. This 100.8 MW facility is
owned by NextEra Energy. Golden Spread purchases
all of the capacity and output of the facility under a
20-year power purchase agreement (PPA). Golden
Spread currently has 179 MW of wind capacity to
hedge against market risks due to higher natural gas
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* Golden Spread sold all of the environmental attributes
associated with wind to third parties in the form of
renewable energy credits.
Golden Spread served the energy requirements of its
Members as follows:
2%
NATURAL GAS
SIMPLE-CYCLE
COMBUSTION
TURBINES

1%
QUICK-START
NATURAL GAS
(Antelope
Station)

18%
SPP REAL-TIME
ENERGY IMBALANCE
SERVICE
(EIS) MARKET
35%
COMBINED-CYCLE
NATURAL GAS
(Mustang Station)

44%
PURCHASED
POWER
AGREEMENTS

This chart reflects the success of Golden Spread’s

and dispatch the lowest priced units offered to meet the

strategy. The quick-start capability of Antelope Station

needs of the entire market area. Each utility operating

is an important part of this strategy. It allows Golden

in the IM, like Golden Spread, must offer enough

Spread to purchase market energy when the energy is

resources to meet obligations (forecasted load and

at a lower cost than what Golden Spread can generate

operating reserves); if less expensive units are available,

itself, while retaining the ability to meet the reliability

then loads will achieve savings as these cheaper units

needs of Golden Spread’s loads. As long as the market

are dispatched by the SPP. Golden Spread has an IM

contains low-cost energy, Golden Spread will purchase

integration plan in effect to ensure that we are not only

the energy and pass the savings on to its Members.

ready for this challenge, but also embrace the market
opportunity it presents.

New SPP Integrated Marketplace (IM)
Golden Spread’s current mix of generation resources,

Major preparations are underway at the SPP and Golden
Spread to prepare for the new SPP market design that is
on schedule for implementation March 1, 2014.

generation under construction and generation in the
planning stage are all major reasons that our market
strategy is working. Our goal is to strategically plan,
locate and construct generation facilities to take

The new Integrated Market (IM) essentially combines all
of the 16 current balancing authorities in the seven-state
SPP footprint into one. Utilities will no longer commit and
dispatch their own generating units just to serve their

maximum advantage of the new structured markets in
both ERCOT and SPP to help ensure a cost effective
and secure energy future for our Members today and for
generations to come.

loads. Utilities will now offer their available generators
into the IM and allow the SPP to economically commit

INVESTMENT IN UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
(in Billions of Dollars)
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Golden Spread embarked on a major capital expansion program in 2010. Between 2013 and 2020, Golden Spread anticipates spending $1 billion to build additional
generating capacity to substantially meet all of its Members’ load requirements.
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Finance and accounting

Accounting and finance professionals work as a team
to provide essential information and counsel to Golden
Spread’s Board of Directors and management.
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2012: YEAR IN REVIEW
Financial Overview

Lower Rates Due to Lower Fuel Costs

Demand and Energy Sales
Golden Spread’s peak demand increased in 2012 to
1,541 megawatts (MW), representing a 5.5 percent
increase over the 2011 peak of 1,460 MW. Since 2008,
peak load has increased an average of 5.5 percent
annually for an average increase of more than 70 MW
in each year. Energy sales to Members declined by 3.3
percent in 2012, following a 28.6 percent increase in
energy sales to Members in 2011. The large increase in
2011 followed by the small decline in 2012 were due to
the extreme drought conditions that existed throughout
the service territories of Golden Spread’s Members.
Over the past five years, energy sales to Members have
increased an average of over 9 percent annually, which is
more than the growth in peak demand over the

In 2012, the average energy rate billed to Members
was $51.81 per MWh, a decline of 14 percent from
the average rate of $60.12 billed to Members in 2011.
This decline in the average energy rate was largely due
to lower fuel costs which averaged $16.87 per MWh in
2012, compared to $24.07 per MWh in 2011.
Patronage Capital Distributions
Golden Spread’s Board of Directors is currently paying
patronage capital distributions approximating 2 percent
of end-of-year equity balances. In 2012, patronage
capital distributions of $6 million were paid to Members
and in February 2013, $7 million in distributions were
paid to Members, bringing the total patronage capital
distributions to more than $63 million since 2000.
Change in Auditors

same period.
Non-member energy sales declined significantly from
just over 1 million megawatt-hours (MWh) to just under
265,000 MWh. This decline is continuing a trend that
began in 2011 as more of Golden Spread’s generation
resources are needed to meet its Members’ loads.

The Board of Directors, upon a recommendation by the
Audit Committee, selected the international accounting
firm of KPMG LLP (KPMG) to audit Golden Spread’s
financial statements beginning in 2012. KPMG was
selected after proposals from and interviews with four firms.
KPMG’s Albuquerque office is staffing the engagement.

PATRONAGE AND
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL DISTRIBUTIONS

AVERAGE RATE TO MEMBERS

(in Dollars per Megawatt-Hours)

(in Millions of Dollars)
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In 2010, Golden Spread reduced its patronage capital refund policy
to maintain target equity ratios while undertaking a $1 billion capital
expansion program through 2020.
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Average rate to Members, in large part, fluctuates with changes in natural
gas prices.
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2012: YEAR IN REVIEW
Construction Plan

requirements will increase more than 1,100 MW,

Golden Spread’s immediate generation expansion
plan involves the installation of a gas-fired, simplecycle combustion turbine project at Mustang Station.
Golden Spread signed a contract with Zachry
Industrial, Inc. on April 5, 2012, to engineer, procure
and construct Mustang Station Unit 6. This project
involves using the last of a set of units purchased in
2006 that were in storage at the Reese Technology

growth and replace existing power sales contracts. In

Center in Lubbock, Texas.
Mustang Station Unit 6 is the first combustion turbine
in Golden Spread’s generation fleet to use inlet chilling
technology. This technology chills inlet air on a hot
summer day to 50°F and increases the generation
output of the combustion turbine generator by more
than 11 megawatts (MW), bringing the total output of
the unit to approximately 163 MW.

with additional resources needed to meet future
order to meet these future generation requirements,
Golden Spread ordered three new General Electric
(GE) 5-series combustion turbines in October 2012
with delivery in late 2013 or early 2014. The new
combustion turbines, introduced by GE in September
2012, provide more output, significant fuel savings,
lower emissions and more operating flexibility than
Golden Spread’s existing GE combustion turbine fleet.
This operational flexibility provides faster starts and
better turn-down capability at greater efficiencies. The
combustion turbines are rated at approximately 190
MW each and are scheduled for commercial operation
in March 2015 and March 2016.
In 2013, Golden Spread will choose site locations for
the combustion turbines that maximize the availability

Commercial operation for this plant is scheduled for
the second quarter of 2013. Operation of the facility
will allow Golden Spread to meet the requirements of
a power sales contract to Southwestern Public Service
Company (SPS) beginning in June 2013 and extending
through 2014. Golden Spread accelerated installation
of this unit to help SPS meet area generation needs.
As we set our sights on 2020,
Golden Spread’s generation

of natural gas, water and transmission access while
meeting the generation needs of our Cooperative
Members in the Electric Reliability Council of Texas
(ERCOT) and the Southwest Power Pool (SPP). As
we deploy the resources already purchased, we will
sharpen our focus on the generation needs through
2020 by considering additional gas-fired generation
equipment ranging from reciprocating engine
generators to simple and combined-cycle power plants.
PLANNED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
(in Millions of Dollars)
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FOCUS On 2020
engineering

The engineering staff discusses targets for new plant site locations
as part of Golden Spread’s long-term generation expansion plan.
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Information technology

The information technology department implemented a
number of major projects in 2012, including a new Member
billing system, a data warehousing initiative and an upgrade
for supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA).
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2012: YEAR IN REVIEW
Information Technology
The Information Technology (IT) department gained

A corporate data warehousing initiative was defined and

momentum and structure in 2012, achieving important

a vendor selected to implement the pilot project. This

objectives that will impact both internal operations and

project assists with the definition and organization of

our Members for years to come. Golden Spread began

operational data and provides insight into information

to fill critical IT positions this year by hiring a Network

access and delivery.

Administrator and using the services of ACES to provide
an interim CIO for guidance and leadership.

Our supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA)
environment underwent a significant upgrade this year

A new Member billing system was implemented on

in conjunction with the Department of Energy/Smart

time and within budget to meet the current and future

Grid implementation. The upgrade greatly improved

needs of Golden Spread. The new system will be used

reliability and tolerance of telecommunications failures

and supported by Golden Spread staff. The system will

and enhanced the security of our communications

provide Golden Spread with the flexibility to implement

connections between the Golden Spread SCADA system,

new rates to meet the changing needs of Golden Spread

the generation facilities and Member cooperatives.

and its Members.
A new system is being considered to automate work flow
processes and to improve compliance and document
management processes. The requirements definition
phase of the implementation will be completed in 2013,
with system configuration planned for 2013/2014. The
project scope includes the establishment of document
retention, e-discovery policies and procedures and email
management solutions.
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Member Services

The new Member services and rates department assists
Golden Spread’s 16 Member cooperatives with their
requests for information and technical assistance.
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What is a Cooperative?
Electric cooperatives differ in both form and function from other types of electric utilities. Electric
cooperatives are owned by their Members. Unlike investor-owned utilities, electric cooperatives are
private, not-for-profit entities. Cooperatives have a proven track record and offer consumers the
opportunity to own and provide electricity for themselves. The unique mindset of cooperatives has
grown out of the seven cooperative principles, which are outlined below. As energy markets turn from
cost-based regulated utilities to diverse market-based independent power producers and marketers,
cooperatives provide a beneficial and reliable alternative for consumers. Cooperatives globally follow
the same seven principles and values adopted by the International Cooperative Alliance in 1995.

VOLUNTARY AND OPEN MEMBERSHIP
Cooperatives are voluntary organizations, open to all people able to use their services and willing
to accept the responsibilities of Membership, without gender, social, racial, political or religious
discrimination.

DEMOCRATIC MEMBER CONTROL
Cooperatives are democratic organizations controlled by their Members – those who buy the goods
or use the services of the cooperative – who actively participate in setting policies and making
decisions.

MEMBERS’ ECONOMIC PARTICIPATION
Members contribute equally to, and democratically control, the capital of the cooperative. This
benefits Members in proportion to the business they conduct with the cooperative, rather than on
the capital invested.

AUTONOMY AND INDEPENDENCE
Cooperatives are autonomous organizations controlled by their Members. If the cooperative enters
into agreements with other organizations or raises capital from external sources, it is done based on
terms that ensure democratic control by the Members and maintains the cooperative’s autonomy.

EDUCATION, TRAINING AND INFORMATION
Cooperatives provide education and training for Members, elected representatives, managers and
employees so they can contribute effectively to the development of their cooperative. Members also
inform the general public about the nature and benefits of cooperatives.

COOPERATION AMONG COOPERATIVES
Cooperatives serve their Members most effectively and strengthen the cooperative movement by
working together through local, national, regional and international structures.

CONCERN FOR COMMUNITY
While focusing on Member needs, cooperatives work for the sustainable development of
communities through policies and programs accepted by the Members.
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2012-2013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Service
Recognition

Consumers, the scholarship fund provides assistance

A major strength of Golden Spread Electric

student who is a member-consumer of a rural electric

Cooperative, Inc. is the Board of Directors, comprised

cooperative that is a Member of Golden Spread, the

of 32 individuals from the 16 Member systems.

spouse or child of a member-consumer, or child whose

According to Golden Spread Electric Cooperative

guardian is a member-consumer.

to electric cooperative family members seeking a
college or university education. The scholarship is
available to an entering freshman college or university

bylaws, each Member system has two representatives.
One representative is the General Manager or CEO of

The scholarship is a $2,000 scholarship, payable

the Member and one is designated by the Members’

in $500 installments for each of four semesters

Board of Directors.

through the sophomore year. Six new scholarships are
awarded each year to qualifying scholars enrolled as

Our deep appreciation goes to four notable Board

full-time students in an accredited college or university

Members who left our Board in 2012. Delbert Smith

in Texas or Oklahoma. Twelve students received a

was the last remaining Director who began service

total of $5,700 in scholarship funds in 2012. More

when Golden Spread was first established in 1984.

than $53,300 in scholarship funds were paid to 50

Fredda Buckner was the first woman on the Board of

recipients since the first scholarship was awarded

Directors and served for eight years. James Driver

in 1994.

and Roger Bryan each served the Board for nine
distinguished years. All will be greatly missed.

Directors’ Memorial
Scholarship
Formed in memory of the individuals who were
dedicated to the development and advancement of

Currently, the scholarship fund has a balance in excess
of $131,000 and is administered by the Opportunity
Plan, Inc., located in Canyon, Texas. Golden Spread
makes annual contributions to the fund, in addition
to contributions in memory of past Board Members.
Individual contributions provide additional capital for
the scholarship fund.

rural electrification for the benefit of their Member-
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Stan McClendon, Chairman

Roland Witt, Vice-Chairman

Billy C. Harbin, Sec/Treas

Dale Ancell
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As Golden Spread is progressing in adding generation,
its equity/capitalization ratio is declining, but remains
substantially above other “A” rated G & Ts.
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DSC ratios remain stable and are good in comparison
to other “A” rated G & Ts, despite the increasing debt
associated with Golden Spread’s capital expansion
program.
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cash liquidity needed to fund construction expenditures.
Golden Spread targets maintaining cash balances of at
least 90 days’ cash operating expenses at all times.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an overview of
the consolidated financial condition and results of operations of
Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. (Golden Spread or the
Cooperative) and its wholly owned operating subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for the three years ended
December 31, 2012. Through December 31, 2012, the operating
subsidiaries include Golden Spread Panhandle GSPWR, LLC
(GSPWR) and Fort Concho Gas Storage, Inc. (FCGS). Prior to July 1,
2012, Golden Spread’s operating subsidiaries also included GS
Electric Generating Cooperative, Inc. (GSEGC), Denver City Energy
Associates, L.P. (DCEA), Yoakum Electric Generating Cooperative,
Inc. (YEGC), and Antelope Electric Generating Cooperative, Inc.
(AEGC). As of July 1, 2012, GSEGC, DCEA, YEGC and AEGC were
merged into Golden Spread and liquidated. The consolidated
entity is collectively referred to as “the Cooperative” or “Golden
Spread.” GSPWR owns generation assets and FCGS owns a
natural gas storage facility.
The matters discussed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
contain forward-looking statements that are based on estimates,
forecasts and assumptions involving risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ from those
expressed in these statements. Any forward-looking statements
are based on information as of the date of this report.

Overview
In 2010, the Cooperative embarked on a 10-year approximately
$1.8 billion construction program to add 1,400 megawatts to its
existing portfolio of almost 550 megawatts of owned capacity and
an additional 244 megawatts of controlled generation resources.
In 2011, construction of 246 megawatts of owned generation was
completed at a cost of approximately $333 million (before receipt
of grant proceeds of approximately $47.28 million in connection
with GSPWR). The 244 megawatts of controlled generation
resources were added when Golden Spread acquired Denver City
Energy Associates, L.P., effective January 31, 2011, for cash
consideration of approximately $35 million and the assumption of
long-term debt with a market value of $68.9 million. The remaining
planned construction projects will provide the additional capacity
needed to replace power purchase agreements and to meet
the growing demand and energy needs of Golden Spread’s 16
Members and their Member-Consumers. Golden Spread’s thirdparty power purchase agreements, totaling approximately 860
megawatts in 2012, will have capacity reductions and ultimately
terminate between 2015 and 2019.
In the last 10 years, Golden Spread accumulated more than
$371 million in additional equity and made approximately
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$63 million in patronage and contributed capital retirements to
its Members. As of December 31, 2012, Golden Spread had
patronage and contributed capital of more than $342 million. This
equity base, with expected growth through annual margins, is the
financial foundation that will support the now projected generation
expansion program of more than $1 billion planned between now
and 2020, which is projected at $1.6 billion between now and
2030. Note that the original $1.8 billion capital expansion plan
between now and 2020 was reduced as generation additions were
added and resource selections were revised.
Antelope Station was the first project finished in this generation
expansion program. This 168 megawatt project of quick-start
generators achieved commercial operation in June 2011 at a total
cost of $167.8 million. In September 2011, GSPWR, the 78.2
megawatt wind ranch, achieved commercial operation at a total
cost of $164 million, before reduction for Federal grant proceeds.
This project qualified for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(ARRA) funds that reimbursed GSPWR for 30%, or $47.28 million,
of the qualifying costs of the project. Both projects were completed
at a capital cost that was less than the amount budgeted and both
projects achieved commercial operation at the time planned or
before. Golden Spread is close to completion of its third project in
its expansion program with the installation of Unit 6 at Mustang
Station. This unit will add 163 MW at a total cost of approximately
$80 million. Golden Spread utilized a GE 7FA combustion turbine
previously in storage. Mustang Station Unit 6 is expected to be
completed in the second quarter of 2013.
On June 3, 2011, Golden Spread closed on the purchase of
DCEA, the owner of a 50% undivided interest in Mustang Station.
Mustang Station is a 489 MW natural-gas fired, combined-cycle
generation power facility located outside of Denver City, Texas.
The other half of Mustang Station was already owned by the
Cooperative through GSEGC. Golden Spread purchased all of the
capacity and energy of Mustang Station prior to the acquisition,
thereby controlling this generation resource. With this purchase,
which was effective January 31, 2011, Golden Spread now has
complete control of all operations and maintenance of the plant.
Golden Spread continues to use a third-party operator to operate
the plant on a daily basis. Subsequent to closing in 2011, Golden
Spread refinanced the project debt held by a syndication of
banks, reducing the interest cost, better matching the debt term
with the remaining economic life, and eliminating the cost and
administrative burdens associated with a project financing. The
refinancing was completed with the proceeds of a $430 million
private placement, of which $140 million was used to refinance
the existing Mustang Station project debt.

With the acquisition of DCEA, the completion of its three new
generation projects and modification of planned resource additions
to better match loads and markets, Golden Spread’s 10-year capital
expansion program has been partially completed, with a total of just
over $1 billion remaining to be expended between now and 2020
plus an additional $600 million in capital expansion between 2020
and 2030, bringing the total capital expansion plan to $1.6 billion
between now and 2030. However, the Cooperative’s management
is continually evaluating alternatives to reduce the level of capital
expenditures, while meeting the goal of providing a reliable,
cost-effective, competitive power supply to secure energy for its
Members now and in the future.

Taking into account all potential sources of income, Golden
Spread’s financial forecast reflects annual net margins of
approximately $35 million annually. Although substantial debt
capital will be required to finance the generation expansion
plan, the Cooperative expects to finance no more than 80% of
the cost of the generation projects. With the financing plan and
targeted DSC ratio of 1.5, Golden Spread’s financial forecasts
predict that equity/capitalization ratio will remain in the 30-40%
range throughout this major capital expansion program, averaging
37% and ending at 33% in 2020. This also assumes continued
payment of annual patronage capital distributions of no less than
2% of end-of-year equity.

Although much of the equity Golden Spread accumulated over the
past 10 years resulted from margins from nonmember sales, those
margins have declined substantially over the past several years.
Golden Spread expects that, for the near term, gas prices and
market conditions will result in generally lower market prices and
a continuation of the reduced level of nonmember sales margins,
but also will contribute to lower Member power costs. To assure
that Golden Spread can continue to generate cash and equity at
levels necessary to maintain its target financial ratios, retain high
investment ratings (“A” or better from the three main credit rating
agencies), and support its planned capital expansion, the Golden
Spread Board acted in 2009 to change the Member rate to include
an Equity Stabilization Charge (ESC) to generate margins needed
to supplement equity from other sources. This change became
effective January 1, 2010. To the extent nonmember sales margins
and other sources of net margins are not sufficient to assure
maintenance of targeted financial ratios, Golden Spread can make
up any shortfall by adjusting this rate provision. In 2012, 2011,
and 2010 this rate provision contributed $22.8 million, $11.4
million, and $10.2 million, respectively, in additional margins.

Results of Operations
SALES
Sales are summarized in the following table:
SUMMARY OF SALES AND REVENUES
Years Ended December 31
2012

2010

Member Sales

$ 371,003

$ 405,158 $ 332,564

Nonmember Sales

7,781

48,349

60,027

Other

4,564

3,464

4,336

Total Operating Revenues

$ 383,348

$ 456,971 $ 396,927

Megawatt-Hour Sales (MWhs in 000’s)
SPP Member Sales

5,457

ERCOT Member Sales
Total Member Sales
Nonmember Sales
Total MWh Sales

Under Golden Spread’s prior business model using wholly owned
subsidiaries to hold Golden Spread’s generation assets, Golden
Spread purchased power from its subsidiaries under wholesale
power contracts that provided for payment of all operating costs
plus a capacity charge that produced a Debt Service Coverage
(DSC) ratio of not less than 1.5 times. Until July 1, 2012, these
power purchase costs were included in the Member wholesale
rate and resulted in margins equivalent to the capacity costs
charged by the subsidiaries, net of associated interest and
depreciation expense. As of July 1, 2012, upon the liquidation
and merger of four of these subsidiaries, Golden Spread’s Board
increased the Equity Stabilization Charge (ESC) to include margins
previously collected in the capacity charges that had been charged
to Golden Spread by the subsidiaries and included in net margins.

2011

Operating Revenues ($ in 000’s)

5,646

4,227

1,326

1,367

1,226

6,783

7,013

5,453

263

1,005

1,356

7,046

8,018

6,809

Average Sales Price Per Megawatt-Hour
Member ($/MWh)

$

51.81

$

60.12 $

60.76

Nonmember ($/MWh)

$

29.54

$

41.40 $

41.90

The average rate to Members declined 13.8% in 2012, compared to
2011, due to a 29.9% decrease in fuel prices, offset by higher fixed
costs associated with additional generation. These factors, along
with lower nonmember sales, resulted in a decrease in operating
revenues in 2012 as compared to 2011. Fuel prices averaged
$16.87/MWh in 2012, which is lower than the average fuel price in
2011 of $24.07/MWh and the 2010 average price of $23.41/MWh.
These average fuel prices correlate to the changes in natural gas
prices which averaged $2.76/MMBtu in 2012, $4.14/MMBtu in
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2011, and $4.34 in 2010. (Average natural gas prices represent the

Years Ended December 31

annual average natural gas prices/MMBtu delivered to Mustang and
Antelope Stations.)

2012
Nonmember Sales

$

1,499

2011
$

2010

7,537 $ 13,277

Margins in Member Rates:

Energy sales in 2012 remained high (but not as high as 2011)

Capacity Charges

15,072

25,448

14,234

due to continued hot and dry weather conditions which resulted

Equity Stabilization Charge

22,752

11,407

10,261

1,377

2,645

9,358

in a continuation of a high level of sales to serve irrigation load,
particularly in the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) region. Irrigation
sales represented approximately 24% of megawatt-hour sales
to Members in 2010, but represented 34% of energy sales in
2011 and 33% in 2012. Favorable economic conditions in the
Members’ service territories also contributed to the strong level
of Member sales in these periods, with growth in energy sales
averaging 6.5% from 2006 through 2010 and over 7% from 2006
through 2011, dropping slightly in 2012 due to less extreme

Other
Net Margins

$ 40,700

$ 47,037 $ 47,130

The levels of nonmember sales margins fluctuate in relation
to the volume of nonmember sales and natural gas prices.
Nonmember sales margins are primarily attributable to Golden
Spread’s participation in the Southwest Power Pool EIS Market,
which became effective on February 1, 2007. Golden Spread
sells power into the EIS Market when prices are above its

weather conditions than in 2011. Growth in peak demand has

incremental production cost. The EIS Market also allows Golden
also averaged approximately 6% annually over the past five years. Spread to purchase energy when market prices are below its
decremental cost of energy. Low cost EIS Market purchases
Energy sales to nonmembers decreased substantially in 2012

also contributed to the lower average sales price to Members of

compared to 2011. The low natural gas prices resulted in

approximately $52 in 2012, $60 in 2011 and $61 in 2010.

Mustang Station being the lowest energy cost resource (except
for GSPWR). It therefore was used to serve Member loads,

With the additional capacity resulting from 2011 resource

making it unavailable for energy sales to nonmembers. This lower additions, combined with the abundance of wind and coal
resources in the SPS control area, Golden Spread took
level of nonmember sales is expected to continue in the future
unless there are increases in natural gas prices or changed

advantage of low energy prices available in the EIS market, for

market conditions. The higher volume of nonmember sales in

which Golden Spread paid an average price of less than $20 per

2010 contributed to net margins in that year, as explained below.

MWh in 2012. The combination of energy generated by Golden
Spread’s generation resources and the purchase of energy from

Net Margins

the EIS market reduced Golden Spread’s reliance on energy
from third party power purchased agreements from 88% in 2010
to 38% in 2012.

Net margins of $40.7 million in 2012 were the sixth highest in
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Golden Spread’s history, following the fourth highest in 2010

As mentioned previously, Golden Spread’s prior business model

of $47.1 million and the fifth highest in 2011 of $47.0 million.

utilized wholly owned subsidiaries to hold generation assets.

The higher level of net margins in 2011 was due primarily to the

Capacity charges by those subsidiaries generated margins which

addition of new generation resources, including the acquisition of

contributed to Golden Spread net margins. Margins earned

DCEA and the start of commercial operations of Antelope Station

from these capacity charges were $15.1 million in 2012, $25.4

and GSPWR. New resources result in increased margins due to

million in 2011 and $14.2 million in 2010. The significant

the increased revenue requirement necessary to achieve a target

increase in 2011 was due to the acquisition of DCEA, the

DSC of 1.5 times on the debt associated with the new resources.

start of commercial operation of Antelope and GSPWR and the

The higher level of net margins in 2010 was due to nonmember

annual increase in the contract capacity rates associated with

margins, the additional margins of $10.2 million created by the

Mustang Station. In 2012, such amounts were less, reflecting

addition of the ESC in member rates, and a $6.2 million gain on

only six months of capacity charges due to the merger of four of

the sale of a General Electric D11 steam turbine generator that

Golden Spread’s subsidiaries into Golden Spread, as previously

was in storage for future use. A comparison of the components

discussed. The lower level of capacity charges was offset by

of net margins is set forth in the following table:

higher ESC charges included in Member rates.

The ESC increased on July 1, 2012, to recover the capacity

per MWh in 2010. This difference between the average selling

charges previously collected by the subsidiaries prior to the

price to Members and the average power supply cost per MWh

merger. The Board approves Member wholesale rates that provide represents the recovery of all other expenses of operations and
for the recovery of all costs and an ESC that provides for margins

provides for the Members’ contribution to net margins, which were

necessary to maintain Golden Spread’s targeted liquidity and

$37.8 million in 2012, $36.9 million in 2011, and $24.5 million

financial ratios, including DSC, equity as a percentage of total

in 2010.

capitalization, and other key ratios that affect the confidence of
lenders and rating agencies.

Virtually all expenses, excluding power supply costs, increased
in 2012 as compared to 2011 and 2010 due to the addition

Other sources of margins in 2010 include the $6.2 million

of the new resources throughout 2011, including the remaining

gain from the sale of the General Electric D11 steam turbine

50% interest in Mustang Station, Antelope Station and GSPWR

generator and $3.2 million in proceeds from insurance due to

mentioned above. Plant maintenance expenses can vary year to

lost profits during Mustang Station outages in 2006 and 2007.

year because it is a function of required planned maintenance

The remainder of this amount in 2010 and the full amounts in

and maintenance costs resulting from unplanned outages. Plant

2011 and 2012 represent interest earned on cash balances,

maintenance increased in 2012 due to an increase in the costs

patronage capital income and a small amount of farm income

under a long-term service agreement, a full year of maintenance

related to land owned by Golden Spread. Interest income is

expenses on Antelope Station and GSPWR and a major scheduled

affected in all three years due to variations in interest rates and

maintenance event on a combustion turbine during the year.

cash balances.
Administrative and general costs remained essentially the

Operating Expenses

same for 2012 and 2011, but were higher than 2010 due to an
increased number of employees.

Operating expenses are summarized in the table below:
Years Ended December 31

Liquidity and Capital Resources

2012

2011

2010

$ 248,415

$ 331,890

$ 312,629

Plant Operations and Management

8,789

7,005

3,841

investments of approximately $200 million. Golden Spread also

Plant Maintenance

6,216

3,138

2,984

had lines of credit totaling $250 million for the financing of its

Administrative and General

19,046

19,476

14,619

Depreciation

26,176

19,787

8,677

Taxes Other Than Income

5,448

4,416

1,960

Other

6,252

8,999

4,198

$ 320,342

$ 394,711

$ 348,908

Power Supply Expense*

Total

*Power supply expense includes fuel, power purchases and transmission expenses.

As of December 31, 2012, Golden Spread had available cash and

current construction program and for general liquidity needs. As
of December 31, 2012, $40.4 million was borrowed under these
credit lines. There are no restrictions, limitations or pledges of
cash or any other assets, other than as separately identified on
the financial statements and in the footnotes. In addition to the
cash balances maintained at each year-end, Golden Spread also
had additional borrowing capability of approximately $130 million
under its indenture at December 31, 2012.

The changes in power supply costs are directly related to fuel
costs, the volume of capacity and energy purchased under third-

On August 11, 2011, Golden Spread closed on a $430 million

party power purchased agreements, and associated transmission

private placement offering. Of that total, $275 million was used

charges. The average cost of power supply per MWh was $34.40

to pay off existing lines of credit and replenish the Golden Spread

in 2012, $41.47 in 2011, and $45.91 in 2010. These changes

general funds used for construction, and $140 million was used

relate to the changes in average selling prices per MWh to

to refinance Mustang Station (pay off the existing GSEGC and

Members of $51.81 in 2012, $60.12 in 2011, and $60.76 in

DCEA loans). The Trustee holds the remaining $15 million to be

2010. The difference between the average price per MWh sold

used for Fort Concho Gas Storage facility. Such funds will be

to Members and the average power supply cost per MWh has

utilized for the financing of FCGS in early 2013 when Fort Concho

increased to $17 per MWh in 2012 from approximately $15

achieves commercial operation.
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Recognizing the need for both equity and liquidity to meet the
Cooperative’s planned construction program, effective
January 1, 2010, the board changed the patronage capital
retirement policy to an amount approximating 2% of the prior
year-end equity balance. This resulted in a 2010 payment
of $4.4 million, a 2011 payment of approximately $5.3
million, a 2012 payment (authorized and accrued in 2011) of
approximately $6 million and a 2013 payment (authorized and
accrued in 2013) of $7 million in patronage and contributed
capital distributions to the Members, amounts approximating
2% of the prior year-end equity balances.
Over the next eight years, Golden Spread plans to add
approximately 1,168 MW (including the 163 MW Mustang
Station Unit 6 which will be completed by summer 2013) of new
generation resources to its power supply portfolio, in addition
to the 2011 generation resource additions. The new resources
added and those planned in the future will be used to serve
load growth, to replace expiring wholesale power contracts
and to reduce exposure to volatile wholesale market pricing.
Golden Spread has a power supply portfolio that includes a
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mix of owned generation and purchased power that provides
energy from a combination of renewable, gas-fired and coal-fired
resources to supply its Members with reliable and reasonably
priced power. Golden Spread maintains target financial ratios
that are deemed appropriate to ensure adequate liquidity, equity
and debt service coverage ratios to support the additional debt
that will be needed to fund new generating resources. The
target ratios guide management and the Board of Directors
in establishing annual budgets, setting rates and determining
the level of patronage and contributed capital retirements to
Members. Golden Spread’s financial policies are designed
to maintain capital and liquidity sufficient to provide for the
financing of all future projects with an appropriate mix of debt
and equity, while maintaining strong financial ratios. In June
2011, Fitch Ratings upgraded its rating on Golden Spread’s
senior secured debt from an A- to an A with a stable outlook. In
August 2012, Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed its general corporate
credit rating of A. In December 2012, Moody’s Investor Services
reaffirmed its general corporate credit rating of A3 (unsecured)
with a stable outlook.

Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Directors
Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in Members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, and the results of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
OTHER MATTER
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2011, and for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, were audited by other auditors whose report
thereon dated May 3, 2012 expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Albuquerque, New Mexico
April 29, 2013

35

Consolidated Balance Sheets
ASSETS
UTILITY PLANT AT COST
Electric Plant in Service
Capital Maintenance
Construction Work in Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation - Plant and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Amortization - Capital Maintenance
Total Utility Plant

DECEMBER 31
2012

2011

$ 667,619,648
42,885,304
62,360,629
110,986,321
27,902,173
$ 633,977,087

$ 652,831,605
27,107,767
543,042
88,088,175
24,779,118
$ 567,615,121

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS - AT COST OR STATED VALUE
Investments in Associated Organizations
Other Investment Securities
Plant Held for Future Use
Other Property
Total Other Property and Investments

$

3,930,337
2,300,000
–
37,132,304
$ 43,362,641

$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-Term Investment Securities
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Capital Maintenance
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

$ 159,909,551
37,410,000
28,749,570
15,669,590
14,209,477
$ 255,948,188

$ 117,532,535
2,300,000
81,569,922
25,168,566
10,427,801
$ 236,998,824

$

3,342,121
2,778,980

$

3,666,980
2,938,882

$

6,121,101

$

6,605,862

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred Charges
Debt Issuance Costs (Net of accumulated amortization of
$421,452 in 2012 and $260,300 in 2011)
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

3,441,061
16,300,000
20,404,561
32,451,813
$ 72,597,435

$ 939,409,017

$ 883,817,242

MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Patronage Capital
Contributed Capital
Accumulated Comprehensive Loss
Total Members’ Equity

$ 329,638,209
12,545,725
–
$ 342,183,934

$ 288,937,753
12,545,725
–
$ 301,483,478

LONG-TERM DEBT
Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities

$ 484,602,605

$ 483,910,523

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Notes Payable
Accounts Payable
Amounts Due Members
Patronage and Contributed Capital Payable
Other Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities

$ 14,265,378
40,447,926
32,489,253
6,981,329
–
13,532,547
$ 107,716,433

$ 13,334,954
15,500,840
24,369,343
22,477,135
5,978,494
12,247,855
$ 93,908,621

$

$

MEMBERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

DEFERRED CREDITS
Asset Retirement Obligation
Other Deferred Credits
Total Deferred Credits
TOTAL MEMBERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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$

3,055,583
1,850,462
4,906,045

$ 939,409,017

$

2,928,205
1,586,415
4,514,620

$ 883,817,242

Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

$ 378,784,037
4,563,549
$ 383,347,586

$ 453,507,036
3,463,520
$ 456,970,556

$ 392,591,260
4,335,679
$ 396,926,939

$ 146,020,860
64,675,545
37,718,596
1,005,870
8,789,107
6,216,452
5,245,755
19,046,239
26,175,864
5,448,113
$ 320,342,401

$ 211,107,774
87,661,586
33,120,373
1,454,716
7,005,345
3,138,364
7,543,645
19,476,222
19,787,331
4,415,477
$ 394,710,833

$ 261,149,758
25,063,493
26,416,329
1,050,750
3,840,757
2,983,870
3,147,376
14,619,174
8,676,698
1,959,637
$ 348,907,842

$

63,005,185

$

62,259,723

$

48,019,097

$

427,186
22,827,874

$

4,311,041
17,401,112

$

1,530,393
10,089,815

Operating Revenues
Wholesale Power Sales
Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Purchased Power
Fuel Expense
Transmission Expense
Other Power Supply Expense
Plant Operations and Management
Plant Maintenance and Maintenance Services
Other Operating Expense
Administrative and General
Depreciation and Amortization
Taxes Other than Income Taxes
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Margins Before Fixed Charges
Fixed Charges
Short-Term Interest
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used
During Construction
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs
Total Fixed Charges

Operating Margins After Fixed Charges

$

(400,242 )
161,152
23,015,970

$

39,989,215

$

(4,651,270 )
359,618
17,420,501

$

(4,137,591 )
259,154
7,741,771

$

44,839,222

$

40,277,326

$

$

505,258
6,155,471
192,042
6,852,771

Nonoperating Margins
Interest and Capital Credit Income
Gain on Disposition of Property
Other Income (Expense)
Total Nonoperating Margins

Net Margins
Other Comprehensive Gain (Loss) on Cash Flow
Hedges Before Reclassification Adjustment
Reclassification Adjustment Included in Net Margins
Net Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
from Derivative Instruments
Net Comprehensive Income

$

$

828,506
–
(117,265 )
711,241

$

$

2,260,716
28,875
(91,562 )
2,198,029

$

40,700,456

$

47,037,251

$

47,130,097

$

–
–

$

(1,525,073 )
15,775,073

$

(1,250,000 )
–

$
$

–
40,700,456

$
$

14,250,000
61,287,251

$
$

(1,250,000 )
45,880,097

See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Members’ Equity
Years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010

PATRONAGE
CAPITAL

Balance, December 31, 2009
Net Margins - 2010

$ 13,329,613

$ (13,000,000 )

$ 209,975,598

$

$

$

$ 47,130,097

(1,250,000 )

(266,593 )

–

(1,250,000)
(4,430,063)

$ 13,063,020

$ (14,250,000 )

$ 251,425,632

$

$

$

–

$ 47,037,251

14,250,000

14,250,000

–

(11,229,405)

47,037,251
–

–
–

(10,712,110 )

(517,295 )

$ 288,937,753

$ 12,545,725

$

–

$ 301,483,478

$

$

$

–

$ 40,700,456

40,700,456

–

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

–

–

–

–

Patronage/Contributed Capital Retirement

–

–

–

–

$ 329,638,209

$ 12,545,725

–

$ 342,183,934

Balance, December 31, 2012

38

–

$ 252,612,612

Patronage/Contributed Capital Retirement

Net Margins - 2012

–
–

(4,163,470 )

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Balance, December 31, 2011

47,130,097
–

Patronage/Contributed Capital Retirement

Net Margins - 2011

TOTAL

$ 209,645,985

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Balance, December 31, 2010

ACCUMULATED
OTHER
CONTRIBUTED COMPREHENSIVE
CAPITAL
INCOME
(LOSS)

See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

$

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
2012
2011

2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Margins
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortization
Gain on Disposition of Property
Capital Credits
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Deferred Charges
Deferred Credits
Accounts Receivable
Prepayments and Other Current Assets
Payables and Accrued Expenses
Amounts Due to Members
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 40,700,456

$

47,037,251

$ 47,130,097

26,335,766
–
(322,077)

19,887,615
–
(635,379 )

8,930,018
(6,155,471 )
(201,660 )

324,859
264,047
5,536,706
(10,060,237)
9,404,602
(15,495,806)
$ 56,688,316

$

(77,611 )
3,061,937
16,024,532
(17,520,237 )
(44,691,407 )
16,899,016
39,985,717

(15,302 )
77,399
(12,895,359 )
(2,185,296 )
22,376,657
3,973,645
$ 61,034,728

$ (56,201,069)
47,283,646
(4,707,776)

$ (112,482,562 )
–
(304,698 )

$ (219,739,099 )
–
(12,405,849 )

–
–
–
(21,110,000)

(35,355,715 )
3,626,275
–
(18,600,000 )

Cash Flows from investing Activities
Additions to Utility Plant
Grant Proceeds
Additions to Other Property & Plant Held for Future Use
Purchase of DCEA:
Cash Acquisition Price
Cash Received
Proceeds from Sale of Property
Investment in Other and Short-Term Investment
Securities
Maturity of Other and Short-Term Investment
Securities
Investments in Associated Organizations
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

–

–
–
18,000,000
–

–

6,000,000

129,757
$ (34,605,442)

202,159
$ (162,914,541 )

90,383
$ (208,054,565 )

$

–
–
(5,978,494)
–
(13,522,249)
–
–
105,392,918
(65,598,033)
$ 20,294,142

$

16,066,936
(246,993 )
(5,250,911 )
430,000,000
(8,074,250 )
(140,221,740 )
108,380
622,633,742
(709,636,133 )
$ 205,379,031

$

$ 42,377,016

$

$ (55,012,199 )

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Reductions in Reserve Funds
Additions to Reserve Funds
Retirement of Patronage and Contributed Capital
Advance on Long-Term Debt
Payments on Long-Term Debt
Retirement of Long-Term Debt
Advance on Long-Term Debt - Special Facilities
Borrowings – Notes Payable
Repayments – Notes Payable
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents –
Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents –
End of Year
Supplemental Disclosures
of Cash Flow information
Interest Paid During the Year

117,532,535

82,450,207

–
(1,017,999 )
(4,430,063 )
–
(7,177,549 )
–
–
414,355,323
(309,722,074 )
$ 92,007,638

35,082,328

90,094,527

$ 159,909,551

$

117,532,535

$ 35,082,328

$ 23,411,933

$

12,620,797

$ 16,720,381

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS:
In 2012, Golden Spread completed two signiﬁcant noncash transactions: transfer of gas turbine from Plant Held for Future Use to Construction Work in
Progress in the amount of $20,404,561 to account for the turbine installation at Mustang Station Unit 6, and transfer from Prepaid Capital Maintenance
into Capital Maintenance in the amount of $15,777,537 to account for 2012 maintenance activities.
In 2012, a line of credit was reﬁnanced to a long-term note in the amount of $14,847,799.
See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

1. Organization and Operations
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Golden Spread Electric
Cooperative, Inc. (Golden Spread) and its wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Fort Concho
Gas Storage, Inc. (FCGS), and Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch, LLC (GSPWR) (see
Note 3), at December 31, 2012. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Golden Spread and its wholly owned operating subsidiaries, GS Electric Generating
Cooperative, Inc. (GSEGC), Yoakum Electric Generating Cooperative, Inc. (YEGC), Antelope
Electric Generating Cooperative, Inc. (AEGC), FCGS, GSPWR, and Denver City Energy
Associates, L.P. (DCEA) (see Note 3) at December 31, 2011. As of July 1, 2012, four of Golden
Spread’s subsidiaries, GSEGC, DCEA, YEGC and AEGC were merged into Golden Spread (see
Note 11). Another subsidiary, Mid-Tex Generation and Transmission Electric Cooperative, Inc.
(Mid-Tex) has no operations at this time. The consolidated entity is collectively referred to as
“the Cooperative” or “Golden Spread.” Its headquarter facilities are located in Amarillo, Texas.
Golden Spread’s Members are 16 rural electric distribution cooperatives that provide service
to their retail Member-Consumers in the Panhandle, South Plains and the Edwards Plateau
regions of Texas, in the Panhandle of Oklahoma, in Southwest Kansas and a small portion
of Southeast Colorado. The Member loads served by the Cooperative are located in the
Southwest Power Pool (SPP) and the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT).
Golden Spread is subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) for corporate and rate regulation related to its activities in the SPP, and is subject to
the regulation of the Public Utility Commission of Texas for certain activities in both ERCOT
and SPP. FCGS is subject to the rules and regulations of the Texas Railroad Commission.
GSPWR is subject to FERC jurisdiction.
Golden Spread is tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(12) as long as 85%
of its gross receipts (as defined under the Internal Revenue Code) are derived from sales to
Members. For each of the three years ended December 31, 2012, the 85% test was met. Any
revenues earned in excess of costs incurred are allocated to Members of Golden Spread and
are reflected as patronage capital equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
FCGS and GSPWR were formed as taxable corporations; however, for FCGS, significant
operations had not yet commenced at December 31, 2012, and for GSPWR, a tax loss was
incurred in 2012 and 2011, for which the related deferred tax benefit has been reduced by
a valuation allowance for the full amount of the benefit based on its expected net realizable
value.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies
The accounting records of the Cooperative are maintained in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and the accounting system prescribed by FERC for
electric utilities.

(a) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Golden Spread and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

(b) Operating Revenues
Under the Golden Spread tariff, Golden Spread bills its Members monthly based on annual
estimates of costs and usage. The tariff provides that there will be a reconciliation of actual
costs incurred to the amounts billed. Any over or under recovery of costs is refunded or
surcharged in the subsequent year. Unbilled revenues are accrued for amounts that are
recoverable under rate tariffs but not yet billed. Amounts billed to Members in excess
of recoverable costs under rate tariffs are accrued as a reduction of revenues and as a
liability to the Members. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately $3,614,000 and
$19,736,000, respectively, were recorded as Amounts Due Members in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.
Other operating revenues consist primarily of special facilities charges billed to Members for
use of transmission and distribution assets.
All amounts receivable from Members are considered collectible; therefore, no allowance is
recorded.
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(c) Utility Plant
Utility plant is stated at original cost. The capitalized cost of additions to utility plant includes
the cost of material, direct labor, contract services and various other indirect charges, such as
engineering, supervision and overhead costs, and interest on funds used during construction.
Retirements or other dispositions of utility plant are based on an average unit cost that is
deducted from plant and, together with removal costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated
depreciation. The cost of repairs and minor renewals is charged to maintenance expense in
the period incurred.
Depreciation of utility plant is provided using straight-line depreciation rates over the
following estimated useful lives:
Production Plant
Transmission and Distribution Plant
Gas Interconnections
General Plant

15-30 Years
6-36 Years
15 Years
5 Years

(d) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC)
AFUDC represents the cost of interest capitalized during the construction period. In 2012 and
2011, interest of approximately $0.4 million and $4.7 million, respectively, was capitalized
as part of the costs of Mustang Station Unit 6 in 2012 and Antelope Station and Panhandle
Wind Ranch in 2011, which represented an average interest rate of 2.37% and 4.82%,
respectively.

(e) Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the
underlying debt.

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, the Cooperative considers cash and
investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less as cash and cash equivalents.

(g) Investment Securities
Investment securities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of corporate debt securities.
Golden Spread classifies all of its debt securities as held-to-maturity (HTM). HTM debt
securities are those debt securities in which Golden Spread has the ability and intent to
hold the security until maturity. HTM debt securities are recorded at cost, as there are no
associated premiums and discounts to amortize. Other investment securities consist of
corporate debt securities with a maturity date over one year. Short-term investment securities
consist of corporate debt securities with a maturity date of greater than 90 days and less
than one year. A decline in the market value of any HTM security below cost that is deemed
to be other-than-temporary, results in an impairment to reduce the carrying amount to fair
value. To determine whether impairment is other-than-temporary, the Cooperative considers all
available information relevant to the collectibility of the security, including past events, current
conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts when developing estimates of cash
flows expected to be collected. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons
for the impairment, the severity and duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent
to year-end, forecasted performances of the investee, and the general market condition in
the geographic area or industry the investee operates. Golden Spread’s HTM investments are
invested at National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC).

(h) Inventory
Inventories are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method (FIFO)
for all inventories, except for the gas inventory at the gas storage facility. The gas inventory is
stated at lower of cost or market with cost determined using the weighted average cost basis.

(i) Other Property
Other property includes land, water rights, a gas storage facility with related assets and deposits
to General Electric for generation equipment expected to be delivered by March 2014.

(j) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Golden Spread defers certain expenses that will be recovered through Golden Spread’s future
rates in accordance with GAAP applicable to rate-regulated enterprises. Regulatory assets
are charged as an expense, if and when future recovery in rates of that asset is no longer
probable. Golden Spread also recognizes unearned revenue over future periods for ratemaking purposes.

(k) Concentrations of Credit Risk
The service areas of certain Member cooperatives are largely dependent on agriculture and,
to a lesser extent, oil and gas.
The Cooperative maintains cash balances with various financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At times, cash balances may exceed
insurance coverage. The Cooperative also maintains cash balances with two cooperative
banks whose deposits are not federally insured.

(l) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 and 2010 financial statement
balances to conform to the 2012 presentation.

(m) Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

$35,355,715. The acquisition of DCEA, effective January 31, 2011, resulted in Golden
Spread owning 100% of Mustang Station, a 489 megawatt combined-cycle gas-fueled
generation facility that began full commercial operation in April 2000. In addition, this
acquisition provided control over the operation of the plant (DCEA had been Operating
Agent for Mustang Station). The acquisition allowed Golden Spread to refinance the debt
associated with Mustang Station, which had been a project-financing. Such debt was
refinanced with the proceeds of the 2011 Private Placement (see Note 11). As of June 30,
2012, DCEA and GSEGC were liquidated and merged into Golden Spread.

4. Utility Plant
The components of utility plant are summarized as follows:

(n) Income Taxes
Golden Spread and all of its wholly owned subsidiaries except GSPWR, FCGS, and DCEA
are tax-exempt cooperative corporations. DCEA was not directly subject to taxation as a
pass-through entity for federal income tax purposes and, therefore, Golden Spread reported
DCEA’s income on its return. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, GSPWR had a cumulative
financial loss carryforward of $(767,460) and income of $166,977, respectively, and a
cumulative federal tax loss carryforward of $61,188,000 and $23,609,000 (due partially to
a permanent difference related to Treasury Section 1603 50% basis increase, but also to
temporary differences due to accelerated tax depreciation), respectively. The related deferred
tax assets of $20,804,000 and $8,027,000, computed using the corporate statutory rate
of 34%, have been reduced by a valuation allowance for the amount net of other deferred
tax liabilities (assets) related to accelerated depreciation of $12,505,000 and $(74,000),
respectively, based on expected net realizable value. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, FCGS
had cumulative financial loss carryforwards and future deductible timing differences (since
costs incurred to date will be deducted only once the storage facility is placed in service) of
approximately $5,716,000 and $4,624,000, respectively. The related deferred tax assets of
$1,943,000 and $1,572,000, respectively, computed using the corporate statutory rate of
34%, has been reduced by a valuation allowance for the full amount of the assets based on
expected net realizable value.
The Cooperative has adopted the “uncertain tax positions” provisions of GAAP. The primary tax
positions of the Cooperative are its filing status as a tax-exempt entity and its need to avoid
exceeding a certain percentage of its income from nonmembers to maintain its tax-exempt
status. The Cooperative has determined that it is more likely than not that its tax positions
will be sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or other state
taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely to be realized upon settlement with taxing
authorities. For the three years ended December 31, 2012, Golden Spread paid no income
taxes.
The Cooperative and each of its wholly owned subsidiaries, except DCEA (whose income, as
a pass-through entity, was reported on Golden Spread’s tax return) file separate income tax
returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Cooperative is no longer subject to income tax
examinations by federal taxing authorities for years before 2009.

(o) Fair Value Measurements
The Cooperative utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Cooperative
determines fair value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
an asset or liability in the principal or most advantageous market. Assessing the significance
of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment considering factors
specific to the asset or liability. When considering market participant assumptions in fair
value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable and
unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the following levels:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Cooperative has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1 inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of
the asset or liability.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair value to
the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which
there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at measurement date.

3. Acquisition
On June 3, 2011, Golden Spread closed on its acquisition of DCEA, the owner of a 50%
undivided ownership interest in Mustang Station. GSEGC owned the other 50% undivided
ownership in Mustang Station. As a result of this purchase, Golden Spread acquired plant
and other assets totaling $120,659,569 (including $3,626,275 in cash) and assumed
related debt and other liabilities totaling $85,303,854 for a cash purchase price of

Plant-in-Service
Land
Production Plant
Transmission and Distribution Plant
General Plant
Total Electric Plant-in-Service
Capital Maintenance
Construction Work in Progress
Total Electric Plant

December 31
2012
2011
$
2,826,034
$
2,826,034
588,931,686
578,545,558
71,421,743
68,331,733
4,440,185
3,128,280
$ 667,619,648
$ 652,831,605
42,885,304
27,107,767
62,360,629
543,042
$ 772,865,581
$ 680,482,414

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Construction Work In Progress (CWIP) consisted primarily
of a new generation project (Mustang Station Unit 6 located at Mustang Station near Denver
City, Texas) under construction for expected commercial operation by the summer of 2013.
Transmission and distribution plant consists of assets that the Cooperative constructs or
acquires for the benefit of individual Members. The debt associated with Special Facilities is
secured by mortgages with CFC on the Transmission and Distribution Plant.
Transmission and distribution plant is excluded from the Trust Indenture (see Note 11)
under which other Golden Spread property is pledged. All operating costs and the related
debt service costs of Transmission and distribution plant are recovered from the Members
that benefit from the facilities.

5. Plant Held for Future Use
At December 31, 2011, Plant Held for Future Use included a General Electric 7FA gas-fired
combustion turbine generator held by the Cooperative at original cost plus accumulated
storage costs, resulting in total costs of $20,404,561. This turbine generator was removed
from storage and is included in CWIP at December 31, 2012.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are summarized as follows:
December 31
2012
Cash

$

26,831,319

2011
$

25,337,522

CFC Commercial Paper

75,942,558

CFC Select Notes

51,950,000

–

3,098,292

6,320,532

CFC Daily Fund Investment
Other Investments
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

83,874,197

2,087,382

2,000,284

$ 159,909,551

$ 117,532,535

Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at cost which approximates fair value. The CFC
commercial paper matured in January 2013 and has interest rates ranging from 0.13% to
0.17%. The CFC Select Notes matured by March 15, 2013, and have interest rates ranging
from 0.26% to 0.31%. The CFC daily fund investments earn interest at a variable interest
rate (0.12% at December 31, 2012).

7. Other and Short-Term Investment
Securities
Other Investment Securities are medium term notes at CFC, with a maturity date greater than
one year. The balance at December 31, 2012, was $2,300,000 for a note with a maturity date
of October 15, 2014 and an interest rate of 1.340%. At December 31, 2011, the balance was
$16,300,000 for notes with maturity dates of January 15 through April 14, 2013 and with
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interest rates ranging from 1.290% to 1.330%. The carrying value of the Other Investment
Securities approximates fair value.
The Short-Term Investment Securities are summarized as follows:
December 31
2012
2011
2,300,000
$ 16,300,000

Other Investment Securities

$

Short-Term Investment Securities
CFC Select Notes
CFC Medium-Term Notes
Total Short-Term Investment Securities

$ 21,110,000
16,300,000
$ 37,410,000

$
$

–
2,300,000
2,300,000

The CFC Select Notes have maturity dates from April 15 to July 15, 2013 with interest
rates ranging from 0.34% to 0.55%. The CFC medium term notes have maturity dates
from January 15 to April 15, 2013 with interest rates ranging from 1.290% to 1.330% at
December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2011, the CFC medium term note had a maturity
date of April 15, 2013 at an interest rate of 1.330%. The carrying value of the Short-Term
Investment Securities approximates fair value.

8. Long-Term Service and Parts Agreement
Golden Spread has a long-term service and parts supply and parts repair agreement (LTSPA)
with General Electric International, Inc. (previously held by Golden Spread’s subsidiaries
GSEGC and DCEA) to provide (i) service and labor for major maintenance of the two gas
turbines, (ii) certain parts and refurbishment services, (iii) other spare parts at discount
prices, and (iv) other factory repair services. The LTSPA has a base fee of $2,493,627 (as
of June 2006) for each gas turbine, with provisions for index adjustments and operational
adjustments. Golden Spread made payments of approximately $6,473,000, $5,844,000,
and $4,697,000 in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The associated maintenance
costs under this agreement are accounted for using the deferral method of accounting and
are recorded as Capital Maintenance in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
when the related maintenance services are performed. Such amounts are amortized over
the maintenance interval for the associated type of maintenance. Amounts paid under the
agreement in advance of the maintenance services performed are recorded as Prepaid
capital maintenance in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets ($15,669,590 and
$25,168,566 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively).
The term of the LTSPA will expire after the earlier of (i) June 14, 2022 or (ii) the completion
of the third major inspection (expected to take place during 2020 or 2021) for the applicable
combustion turbine (based upon current manufacturer’s recommendations); however, the
spare parts discounts and factory repair services will remain in effect through June 14, 2022.

9. Deferred Charges
Golden Spread is subject to the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 980, Regulated Operations. Regulatory assets
represent probable future revenue to Golden Spread associated with certain costs that will be
recovered from customers through the ratemaking process.
Deferred charges consist of the following:

Regulatory Assets
Other Charges
Total Deferred Charges

$
$

December 31
2012
2,124,792
$
1,217,329
3,342,121
$

2011
3,214,320
452,660
3,666,980

10. Derivative Instruments and Hedging
The Cooperative had entered into interest rate swap agreements to hedge against changes
in floating interest rates on the variable-rate term loans issued as part of the initial project
financing of Mustang Station. The interest rate swap agreements effectively converted floating
rates into fixed rates so that the Cooperative could predict with greater assurance what its
future interest costs would be and protect itself against increases in floating rates.
As part of the refinancing of Mustang Station in September 2011, these interest rate
swap agreements were terminated at a loss of $15,775,073, which is reported in the
accompanying 2011 financial statements in Other Operating Expenses.
The Cooperative also routinely enters into physical commodity contracts for purchases of
natural gas and has capacity sales contracts with its Members. Both types of these contracts
qualify for the normal purchase and sales exception under GAAP.
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Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are
recorded in Accumulated Comprehensive Income (ACI) for the effective portion. As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the entire hedge is considered effective and is recorded in
ACI. There were no derivative instruments held at December 31, 2012.
The following table reports the amounts that are recorded in assets, liabilities, and in ACI at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, for the Cooperative’s derivative instruments:
December 31
2012
Total Derivative Liabilities
Comprehensive Loss on Cash Flow Hedges
Before Reclassification Adjustment
Reclassification Adjustment Included
in Net Margins
Net Comprehensive Income from
Derivative Instruments

2011

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

1,525,073

–
$

–

(15,775,073)
$

(14,250,000)

11. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt is summarized as follows:

5.75% Senior Secured Notes, due through 2025 $
4.95% Senior Secured Notes, due through 2041
4.35% Senior Secured Notes, due through 2031
2.74% Senior Secured Notes, due through 2016
2.95% - 8.10% Fixed-Rate Mortgage Notes,
due through 2047
Variable-Rate Mortgage Notes, due through 2038
$
Less: Current Maturities
$

December 31
2012
2011
41,171,900
$
43,372,300
147,762,635
150,000,000
241,968,581
250,000,000
30,000,000
30,000,000
33,832,878
4,131,989
498,867,983
14,265,378
484,602,605

$
$

19,164,642
4,708,535
497,245,477
13,334,954
483,910,523

On August 15, 2011, Golden Spread closed on a $430 million private placement of senior
secured debt. The debt includes three tranches, a $30 million 5-year balloon priced at a fixed
rate of 2.74%, a $250 million 20-year amortizing tranche at a fixed rate of 4.35%, and a $150
million 30-year amortizing tranche at a fixed rate of 4.95%. The debt was used to finance
Antelope Station and GSPWR, both of which achieved commercial operation in 2011. The
proceeds were also used to refinance the debt associated with Mustang Station. Of the total
debt issued in the 2011 private placement, $15 million is held by trustee at December 31,
2012 pending commercial operation of FCGS.
The 2005 senior-secured notes are fixed-rate obligations bearing interest at 5.75%, with equal
semiannual principal and interest payments of approximately $2,332,000, payable over 20
years.
The senior secured notes are first mortgage obligations issued by Golden Spread in August
2011 and May 2005, through private placement offerings. The senior secured notes
are secured under a Trust Indenture, amended and restated as of June 29, 2012, as
supplemented (Trust Indenture). Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, Golden Spread has created
a first lien on certain tangible and intangible assets in favor of the indenture trustee to secure
debt issued under the Trust Indenture on a pro rata basis. Prior to July 1, 2012, Golden
Spread’s historical business model utilized wholly owned subsidiaries to hold substantially
all generation assets. The subsidiaries issued notes under a trust indenture substantially
identical to the Trust Indenture. These notes constitute “Qualifying Securities” under the Trust
Indenture and are assets of Golden Spread. These Qualifying Securities may be “Designated
Qualifying Securities” or “Undesignated Qualifying Securities” under the Trust Indenture. In
the case of Designated Qualifying Securities, Golden Spread issues debt under the Trust
Indenture on the basis of the Designated Qualifying Securities, and the Designated Qualifying
Securities have the same terms as the Golden Spread debt. As of July 1, 2012, four of
Golden Spread’s subsidiaries, GSEGC, DCEA, YEGC and AEGC were merged into Golden
Spread. At December 31, 2012, Designated Qualifying Securities of $87,429,946 related to
GSPWR remained under the Trust Indenture.
Assets held under the Trust Indenture totaled $631,582,000 at December 31, 2012,
and include all land, production plant, general plant, plant held for future use, Designated
Qualifying Securities of GSPWR, and $15 million in cash, all as reported on the consolidated
balance sheets. The Trust Indenture requires Golden Spread to establish and collect rates for
the use or the sale of the output, capacity or service of its system that, together with other

revenues available to Golden Spread, are reasonably expected to yield a Margins for Interest
Ratio of at least 1.10 for each fiscal year. The Trust Indenture also contains restrictions on
distributions by Golden Spread to its Members. The supplemental indenture under which the
2005 senior secured notes were issued contains certain covenants that relate only to those
notes. These covenants include the maintenance of (i) patronage capital and contributed
capital in an amount of not less than $50,000,000 and (ii) a debt service coverage ratio
of 1.25. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Golden Spread had met all requirements of the
indenture.
At December 31, 2012, the Cooperative had sufficient assets, including Qualifying Securities
under the indenture to issue more than $131,000,000 in additional debt.
The variable and fixed-rate mortgage notes are due in quarterly installments and are secured
by the Cooperative’s transmission and distribution assets (with a book value of $46,371,256
and $45,261,492 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively) and the revenues
recoverable through the special facilities charges associated with the transmission and
distribution assets. These assets are excluded from the Trust Indenture and the variable and
fixed-rate mortgage notes are not secured under the Trust Indenture.
As of December 31, 2012, annual maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as
follows:
2013
$ 14,265,378
2014
14,941,368
2015
15,519,400
2016
46,147,318
2017
16,760,715

12. Short-Term Credit Facilities
Borrowings under short-term credit facilities are summarized as follows:
December 31
2012
Borrowings under Lines of Credit
1.90% and 3.20%, respectively

$

2011

40,447,926

$

15,500,840

In 2010, the Cooperative obtained $125 million unsecured committed line of credit for shortterm financing with CFC at a floating rate of interest. The line of credit has a three-year term.
This line of credit is also used to provide letters of credit to fuel suppliers. At December 31,
2011, $2 million in letters of credit had been issued under this arrangement. There were no
issued letters of credit at December 31, 2012.
In 2011, Golden Spread obtained a $75 million unsecured committed line of credit from Bank
of America that bears interest at LIBOR plus 175 basis points; this line of credit was renewed
as of January 2012 for a two-year term. In February 2012, this line of credit was renewed at
an increased amount of $85 million with the same terms and expiration date.
In June 2012, Golden Spread obtained a $40 million unsecured committed line of credit from
Amarillo National Bank that has interest at LIBOR plus 150 basis points. This line of credit
has a two-year term.

13. Asset Retirement Obligation
In August 2001, the FASB issued FASB ASC Subtopic 410-20, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations. GSPWR adopted this statement effective with commercial
operation date of the wind turbines. FASB ASC Subtopic 410-20 provides accounting
requirements for costs associated with the legal obligations to retire long-lived assets. Under
FASB ASC Subtopic 410-20, the asset retirement obligation is recorded at fair value in the
period in which it is incurred by increasing the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. In each
subsequent period, the liability is accreted and the capitalized costs are depreciated over the
useful life of the asset. GSPWR’s asset retirement obligation is associated with the obligation
to restore the leased wind turbine sites to a “green field” condition, as stated in the lease
agreements. The net asset retirement obligation, which is reported in deferred credits in the
accompanying 2012 and 2011 consolidated balance sheets, and the changes in the net
liability for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
December 31
Beginning Balance
Liability settled during the year
Accretion Expense
Ending Balance

$

$

2012
2,928,205
–
127,378
3,055,583

$

$

2011
2,896,704
–
31,501
2,928,205

14. Pension Benefits
Golden Spread provides pension benefits for substantially all of its employees through the
National Rural Electric Cooperative Association Retirement and Security Program (RS Plan)
and Savings Plan. The RS Plan is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401
and tax-exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is a multiemployer
plan under the accounting standards. The plan sponsor’s Employer Identification Number is
53-0116145 and the Plan Number is 333. Golden Spread makes contributions to the RS
Plan equal to the amounts accrued for pension expense. This multiemployer plan is available
to all member cooperatives of NRECA. A unique characteristic of a multiemployer plan
compared to a single employer plan is that all plan assets are available to pay benefits of any
plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not maintained for participating employers.
This means that assets contributed by one employer may be used to provide benefits to
employees of other participating employers. Golden Spread’s contributions to the RS Plan
in 2012 and in 2011 represented less than 5% of the total contributions made to the plan
by all participating employers. Golden Spread’s contributions to the RS Plan in 2012, 2011
and 2010, were $1,230,725, $933,182 and $715,342, respectively. A significant factor
that affected the comparability of total employer contributions was the increase in the
number of employees covered by the plan from 2010 through 2012. An offsetting factor
was the decrease in the employee average age that is used in the calculation to determine
the contribution from 2010 to 2011 (the employee average age was the same for 2012
and 2011). In the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not
determined, under the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated
benefit obligations and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual
employer. In total, the RS Plan was between 65% and 80% funded at January 1, 2012 and
2011, based on the PPA funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates.
Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans
and surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each
year as part of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan
experience.
The Savings Plan has been established under Code Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code, as a defined contribution plan. Under the Savings Plan, Golden Spread matches
employee contributions up to a maximum of 4% of each participating employee’s salary.
Employer contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
were $157,134, $121,022, and $100,010, respectively.
Golden Spread has a deferred compensation plan to provide supplemental retirement
benefits for certain highly compensated employees. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
liability associated with the deferred compensation plan was $556,906 and $286,911,
respectively. Such amounts are included in deferred credits in the accompanying financial
statements.
In addition, under the NRECA-sponsored deferred compensation plan, Golden Spread has
been required to make contributions to NRECA to offset the ultimate funding of the liability by
Golden Spread. Investments of $556,906 and $286,911 are included in deferred charges
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Upon the retirement of any employees who are participants in the plan, Golden
Spread will fully fund any liability to the employee and NRECA will provide Golden Spread with
a credit of an equal amount, which will be used to reduce Golden Spread’s required future
contributions to the defined benefit pension plan discussed in the first paragraph of this
section.

15. Significant Customers
Golden Spread has three Members whose power purchases typically represent at least 10%
of Golden Spread’s annual power sales to its Members. For each of the three years ended
December 31, 2012, sales to South Plains Electric Cooperative, Inc. represented 14% to
15% of sales to Members (12% to 14% of total sales). In the same periods, sales to Lyntegar
Electric Cooperative, Inc. represented 11% to 12% of sales to Members (9% to 11% of total
sales), and sales to Deaf Smith Electric Cooperative, Inc. represented 11% to 12% of sales to
Members (9% to 12% of total sales).

16. Commitments and Contingencies
Golden Spread was a party to a Power Sales Agreement (PSA) with Southwestern Public
Service Company (SPS). The PSA provided for a specified annual capacity (megawatt)
purchase commitment. Golden Spread purchased 525 megawatts under the PSA from
June 2010 through April 2012, at which time the PSA terminated and was replaced by a
Replacement Power Sales Agreement (RPSA) with SPS. The RPSA has a seven-year term, with
Golden Spread purchasing 500 megawatts in years 1 – 3, 300 megawatts in years 4 – 5, and
200 megawatts in years 6 – 7.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

Golden Spread serves substantially all of its ERCOT Members’ loads with power purchased
pursuant to a full-requirements wholesale power agreement with AEP Energy Partners, Inc.
(AEP) that will expire December 31, 2013. A replacement full-requirements agreement with
AEP begins on January 1, 2014, and expires May 31, 2016. This agreement contains similar
terms and conditions as the current agreement.
Golden Spread is obligated under a 20-year power purchased agreement to purchase all the
energy produced by a 100.8 MW wind farm located in central Oklahoma. Golden Spread’s
obligation requires payment of a flat rate per megawatt-hour for all energy produced. The rate
remains the same through the termination of the contract in December 2032.
In 2012, Golden Spread entered into a contract with General Electric to purchase three
combustion turbine generators for delivery in late 2013 or early 2014. Payments commenced
on this obligation in 2012 and continue through 2013. At December 31, 2012, approximately
$105 million remains payable under this contract.
As part of the acquisition of DCEA (see Note 3), the Cooperative recorded an arbitration award
from DCEA that resulted from an arbitration proceeding involving disputes with DCEA over the
pricing of energy sold to Golden Spread under the DCEA PPA and the allocation of costs to
GSEGC under the Joint Operating Agreement (JOA) for Mustang Station. The award granted
monetary damages that resulted in an arbitration award of $8,425,000 in 2011, including
interest on the damages award of $1,423,000. This amount, less interest portion, was used
to reduce the associated expenses to which the award related, and effectively resulted in a
lower reconciled rate to Members in 2011.

17. Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments
Many of the Cooperative’s fixed-rate obligations included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements are obligations that lack an available market with similar terms,
conditions and maturities. Accordingly, assumptions, estimations and present value
calculations were used for purposes of determining the fair value of such financial
instruments. Estimated fair value has been determined by calculating the present value of
financial instruments using the best available data.
Fair value for some amounts carried in the financial statements has not been calculated. The
recorded book value for cash and cash equivalents, other investment securities, short-term
investment securities, accounts receivable, notes payable, accounts payable, amounts due
Members and patronage and contributed capital payable approximates fair value given the
short period to maturity of these instruments. Long-term variable interest notes reprice
frequently at market rates; therefore, the carrying amounts approximate fair value.
The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair value of the
Cooperative’s financial instruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011. Fair value is defined as
the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
2012
Carrying
Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Other Investment
Securities
Short-Term Investment
Securities
Accounts Receivable

2011
Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

$ 159,909,551 $ 159,909,551 $117,532,535 $ 117,532,535
2,300,000

2,300,000

16,300,000

16,300,000

37,410,000
28,749,570

37,410,000
28,749,570

2,300,000
81,569,922

2,300,000
81,569,922

Financial Liabilities:
Mortgage Notes Including Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt:
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CFC Long-Term Debt $ 37,964,867 $ 35,200,000
5.75% Senior
Secured Notes
41,171,900
50,000,000
4.95% Senior
Secured Notes
147,762,635 175,100,000
4.35% Senior
Secured Notes
241,968,581 269,600,000
2.74% Senior
Secured Notes
30,000,000
31,100,000
Total Mortgage Notes $ 498,867,983 $561,000,000

$ 23,873,177 $ 24,950,000

Notes Payable
$ 40,447,926 $ 40,447,926
Accounts Payable
32,489,253
32,489,253
Amounts Due Members
6,981,329
6,981,329
Patronage/Contributed
Capital Payable
–
–

$ 15,500,840 $ 15,500,840
24,369,343
24,369,343
22,477,135
22,477,135

43,372,300

52,500,000

150,000,000

176,750,000

250,000,000

276,500,000

30,000,000
31,000,000
$ 497,245,477 $ 561,700,000

5,978,494

5,978,494

The carrying amounts shown in the table are included in the consolidated balance sheets
under the indicated captions.
The fair value of the Cooperative’s CFC fixed rate long-term debt is calculated by computing
the present value of the individual notes to the next repricing date using a discount rate
that is the current CFC fixed interest rate available for long-term debt. The fair value of the
senior secured notes is calculated using the discount rate that represents the estimated
rate at which the Cooperative could borrow those funds at December 31, 2012.
The financial debt liabilities in the table above are considered Level 2 due to the availability
of observable inputs for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the
full term of the liability. All other financial instruments are considered Level 1.

18. Leases
The Cooperative has several operating leases consisting of a warehouse lease, two office
space leases, and several land leases related to the Panhandle Wind Ranch. The lease
amounts for 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Warehouse Lease

$

Headquarter Office Space
Wind Ranch Lease Minimum Rent
Wind Ranch - Production
Royalty Payments
Total

$

2012
190,157

$

2011
191,935

$

2010
184,270

375,360

397,126

205,345

712,498

223,984

–

119,424
1,397,439

$

41,633
854,678

$

–
389,615

In 2007, the Cooperative entered into a warehouse lease with an initial term of one year with
9 one-year extensions available. The lease for the headquarter office space in Amarillo, Texas,
is from May 1, 2010 through December 31, 2021, with an option to extend the lease for five
years. The rate per square foot on this lease increases each year. The future lease payments
are listed below:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

Headquarter
Office
$ 383,180
391,000
398,820
406,640
414,460

Wind Ranch
Land Lease
$ 712,498
712,498
712,498
712,498
712,498

Golden Spread’s subsidiary, GSPWR has 34 wind turbines that were installed on land that has
nine separate land leases. Upon commencement of commercial operations in September
2011, and the beginning of the first extended lease term, GSPWR is obligated to pay land
lease payments comprised of minimum rent payments and production royalty payments of 6%
of production that exceed the minimum rent payments.

19. Subsequent Events
The Cooperative’s management has evaluated subsequent events through April 29, 2013, the
date at which the consolidated financial statements were available for issue. No events had
occurred that met the criteria for disclosure set forth by the FASB ASC.

5-Year Summary of Condensed Financial Data
and Statistical Information
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT DATA (000)
Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Fuel, Purchased Power and Transmission
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Administrative and General
Depreciation and Amortization
Taxes Other than Income Taxes
Other Operating Expenses
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Margins
Fixed Charges
Operating Margins – after Fixed Charges
Nonoperating Margins
Net Margins
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET DATA (000)
Utility Plant, Net
Other Property and Investments
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term
Investment Securities
Other Current Assets
Other Assets
Total Assets
Patronage and Contributed Capital
Accumulated Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Total Members’ Equity
Long-Term Debt, excluding current maturities
Current Liabilities
Deferred Credits
Total Liabilities
Total Members’ Equity and Liabilities

2012

2010

2009

2008

$

383,348

$ 456,971

$ 396,927

$ 345,641

$ 601,216

$

248,416
15,005
19,046
26,176
5,448
6,252
320,343

$ 331,891
10,144
19,476
19,787
4,415
8,998
394,711

$ 312,629
6,825
14,619
8,677
1,960
4,198
348,908

$ 270,840
8,190
14,814
8,448
2,123
7,150
311,565

$ 507,732
6,601
14,605
8,106
1,507
2,345
540,896

$

63,005
23,016
39,989
711
40,700

$

$

$

$

$
$

$

$
$
$
$

$
$

OTHER FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA
Energy Sales
Energy Sales to Members (MWh)
Energy Sales to Nonmembers (MWh)
Total Energy Sales (MWh)
Member Peak Demand (MW)
Member System Load Factor (%)
Energy Generated (MWh)
Energy Purchased (MWh)
Average Sales Price ($/MWh)
Member
Nonmember
Average Natural Gas Price ($/MMBtu)
Financial Ratios
Equity/Capitalization (%)
Debt Service Coverage (DSC) Ratio
Debt/Funds Available for Debt Service
Net Plant/Net Debt
Days Cash on Hand

2011

$
$
$

$
$

62,260
17,421
44,839
2,198
47,037

$
$

48,019
7,742
40,277
6,853
47,130

$
$

34,076
10,945
23,131
1,342
24,473

$
$

60,320
10,603
49,717
2,945
52,662

633,977
43,363

$ 567,615
72,597

$ 436,242
54,467

$ 216,133
36,766

$ 201,831
35,832

197,320
58,628
6,121
939,409

119,833
117,166
6,606
$ 883,817

38,582
49,053
5,375
$ 583,719

99,595
44,110
17,463
$ 414,067

126,346
44,178
21,005
$ 429,192

342,184
–
342,184
484,603
107,716
4,906
597,225
939,409

$ 301,483
–
$ 301,483
$ 483,911
93,908
4,515
$ 582,334
$ 883,817

$ 265,676
(14,250 )
$ 251,426
$ 133,308
183,282
15,703
$ 332,293
$ 583,719

$ 222,976
(13,000 )
$ 209,976
$ 141,114
48,602
14,375
$ 204,091
$ 414,067

$ 216,503
(19,900 )
$ 196,603
$ 145,457
65,284
21,848
$ 232,589
$ 429,192

6,782,400
263,448
7,045,848

7,013,300
1,004,896
8,018,196

5,453,317
1,356,177
6,809,494

5,683,372
973,788
6,657,160

5,512,647
2,090,060
7,602,707

1,541
50.11
3,239,621
3,991,904

1,460
54.83
1,706,608
6,485,254

1,372
45.37
746,079
6,211,504

1,290
50.28
1,106,991
5,718,545

1,323
47.56
1,273,792
6,487,139

51.81
29.54
2.76
39
2.41
5.99
1.87
184

$
$
$

60.12
41.40
4.14
37
2.54
5.79
1.51
127

$
$
$

60.76
41.90
4.34
50
2.24
4.07
2.14
47

$
$
$

51.34
36.41
3.63
58
2.69
3.47
4.64
115

$
$
$

81.95
79.23
7.34
56
4.51
2.17
8.73
74
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Energy and Financial Charts
COINCIDENT DEMAND

Summer peak loads are affected by

(in Hundreds of Megawatts)

18

Summer

weather conditions and general load

Winter

growth in the Members’ service territories.

15

Winter peaks have shown a pattern
consistent with Golden Spread’s overall

12

growth rate. After fairly stable summer
and winter peak loads from 2008 through
2010, summer and winter peak loads have

9

increased in 2011 and 2012 over prior
years due to load growth.

6

3

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

CUSTOMERS BY RATE CLASSIFICATION

2012

2012

Residential
Irrigation
Commercial

USAGE BY RATE CLASSIFICATION

55.7%
24.0%
20.3%

Residential 18.9%
Irrigation
33.1%
Commercial 48.0%

2011

2010

Residential 19.6%
Irrigation
33.9%
Commercial 46.5%

Residential 22.2%
Irrigation
23.6%
Commercial 54.2%

The composition of customers by

Weather conditions affect the mix of energy sales by classification –

rate classification remains stable

particularly the level of irrigation sales, which generally range from

from year to year.

20 percent to 30 percent of total energy sales. The historic drought
significantly increased the irrigation load in 2011, and 2012 also
experienced hot, dry weather conditions, again adding to the
irrigation load.
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AVERAGE RATE TO MEMBERS

AVERAGE NATURAL GAS PRICE

(in Cents per Kilowatt-Hour)

(in Millions of BTUs)

Fuel

8
$7.34

7

6

Base

4.2¢
6.1¢

6

5

5

$4.34

4

$4.14

$3.63

5.4¢
2.0¢

2.3¢

3.4¢

3.8¢

6.0¢
2.4¢

5.2¢
1.7¢

4
$2.76

3

3

3.7¢

3.6¢

3.5¢

2

2

1

1

2012

2011

2010

2009

2012

2011

2010

2009

0
2008

0

7.9¢

2008

7

8

Lower natural gas prices in 2009 through 2012

Base rates have ranged from 3.4¢/kWh to

resulted in substantial savings for Members.

3.8¢/kWh over the past five years. Fuel costs,
ranging from 1.7¢/kWh to 4.2¢/kWh, are the largest
determinant of the total average rate to Members.

DEBt SErviCE COvErAgE (DSC) rAtiO

Equity-tO-CAPitAlizAtiOn (%)

5

60

4

50

3

40

2

30

1

20

0

10
2009

2010

2011

2012

DEBt-tO-FunDS AvAilABlE
FOr DEBt SErviCE (FADS)

2009

2010

2011

2012

Golden Spread has been planning for its capital
expansion by accumulating equity and producing margins
to achieve ratios that exceed the average ratios of other
generation and transmission cooperatives.

14
12
10

(Source Data: Fitch Ratings’ U.S. Public Power Peer Studies issued in
2009 through 2012. The 2012 amounts for Golden Spread are Golden
Spread’s calculations.)

8
6
4
2
0

2009

2010

2011

2012

G & Ts rated A+ and above
A rated G & Ts
A- rated G & Ts
Golden Spread
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Member Cooperatives’ Information
2012 SUMMARY
Number of Employees
Total Services in Place
Miles of Line
Peak Demand (kW - NCP)
Sales (MWh)
Net Utility Plant
Assets
Margins Plus Equities
Revenues
Cost of Purchased Power
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Net Margins
DSC
Equity Ratio (%)
Net Plant to Net Debt (1)

Bailey
County

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

44
9,411
2,861
105,086
361,367
45,018
75,202
38,435
30,472
22,385
824
3,317
7.66
51.11
1.85

Lamb
County
Number of Employees
Total Services in Place
Miles of Line
Peak Demand (kW - NCP)
Sales (MWh)
Net Utility Plant
Assets
Margins Plus Equities
Revenues
Cost of Purchased Power
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Net Margins
DSC
Equity Ratio (%)
Net Plant to Net Debt (1)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

45
13,303
3,138
118,638
398,147
46,947
81,337
39,466
34,098
24,440
1,492
5,511
3.38
48.52
1.79

Southwest
Texas
Number of Employees
Total Services in Place
Miles of Line
Peak Demand (kW - NCP)
Sales (MWh)
Net Utility Plant
Assets
Margins Plus Equities
Revenues
Cost of Purchased Power
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Net Margins
DSC
Equity Ratio (%)
Net Plant to Net Debt (1)
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$
$
$
$
$
$
$

44
12,706
5,208
24,857
228,232
33,318
48,162
37,599
19,785
11,866
300
3,455
5.28
78.07
6.37

Big
Country

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

53
17,900
5,289
39,897
245,085
48,107
69,269
37,301
24,082
13,408
1,150
3,293
3.08
53.85
2.25

Lighthouse

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

39
10,306
4,343
107,205
339,895
42,678
74,253
40,837
32,255
21,581
1,371
6,349
4.34
55.00
1.71

Coleman
County

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Lyntegar

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Swisher

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

38
9,420
3,633
82,448
227,214
22,429
49,044
32,000
24,268
16,554
474
5,233
5.72
65.25
3.8

32
12,483
3,769
29,790
124,861
16,472
27,534
16,590
11,252
6,840
475
1,631
3.12
60.25
1.99

110
25,803
6,937
200,214
684,253
104,312
179,275
96,805
64,455
41,737
2,908
9,433
3.35
54.00
1.84

taylor

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

72
24,176
4,823
88,508
284,260
72,654
105,871
46,154
33,353
16,092
3,191
6,702
2.78
43.59
61.54

Concho
Valley

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

59
16,945
4,160
49,294
254,840
59,877
79,470
32,433
25,855
13,925
1,355
3,335
2.44
40.81
1.56

North
Plains

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

42
6,616
3,655
84,746
340,451
36,255
64,209
34,427
29,123
19,632
844
4,904
3.97
53.62
1.95

Tri-County

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

89
23,043
5,409
166,732
937,054
163,826
210,448
62,275
85,301
44,475
8,975
16,796
2.63
29.59
1.25

Deaf
Smith

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

51
15,888
4,835
203,069
758,338
46,366
102,614
79,751
59,480
44,417
405
11,252
17.10
77.72
(22.17 )

Rita
Blanca

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

29
8,081
3,239
83,640
373,721
29,261
62,957
46,065
28,530
20,490
427
5,895
9.88
73.17
(14.43 )

Greenbelt

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

38
6,363
2,505
39,150
147,939
26,915
36,321
11,513
15,004
8,721
847
1,419
1.92
31.70
1.36

South
Plains
138
61,611
9,675
282,645
1,489,587
$ 176,412
$ 268,341
$ 109,706
$ 112,004
$ 83,924
$
4,798
$ 12,267
2.87
40.88
1.53

Total
923
274,055
73,479
1,666,035
7,195,243
$ 970,848
$ 1,534,307
$ 761,355
$ 629,316
$ 410,486
$ 29,835
$ 100,794
4.97
49.62
(0.36)

(1) Deaf Smith’s and Rita Blanca’s cash and investments are greater than its debt, resulting in a negative ratio. This creates an overall negative ratio for
Net Plant to Net Debt. Dollar values are in thousands.

GOLDEN SPREAD
MEMBER SYSTEMS
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Bailey County
Big Country
Coleman County
Concho Valley
Deaf Smith
Greenbelt
Lamb County
Lighthouse
Lyntegar
North Plains
Rita Blanca
South Plains
Southwest texas
Swisher
Taylor
Tri-County
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